MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF ANTIGONISH

Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, June 19, 2018, 5:30 pm Council Chambers Municipal Administration Building 285 Beech Hill Road Beech Hill, NS B2G 0B4

Present were: War

Warden Owen McCarron

Deputy Warden Hugh Stewart Councillor Mary MacLellan Councillor Donnie MacDonald Councillor Vaughan Chisholm Councillor Remi Deveau Councillor John Dunbar Councillor Neil Corbett

Regrets:

Councillor Gary Mattie

Councillor Bill MacFarlane

Staff Present:

Glenn Horne, Clerk-Treasurer

Shirlyn Donovan, Strategic Initiatives Coordinator Tammy Feltmate, Director of Sustainable Communities Adam Rogers, Solicitor - Boudrot Rodgers Law Firm

1. <u>Call to Order – Chairman, Warden Owen McCarron</u>

The meeting of the Committee of the Whole was called to order by the Chair, Warden McCarron, at 5:34pm.

2. Approval of Agenda

Warden McCarron called for any additions or deletions to the agenda.

The following items were added to the agenda:

- West River Sewer
- Cameron Kinney Water

Moved By Councillor MacLellan Seconded By Councillor Corbett That the agenda be approved as amended.

Motion: Carried

3. Approval of June 5, 2018 Committee of the Whole Minutes

Warden McCarron called for any errors or omissions in the June 5, 2018 minutes

Moved By Councillor MacDonald Seconded By Deputy Warden Stewart

That the Committee of the Whole minutes of June 5, 2018 be approved as presented

Motion: Carried

4. Business Arising from the Minutes

Councillor MacDonald said that the selection of the new member to be appointed for the Antigonish Heritage Museum Board will be happening soon.

5. <u>Continuing Business</u>

a. <u>Community AED Locations</u>

Mr. Horne provided an update on the locations throughout the County that currently have AED machines. Nine locations were identified, three of which currently have AED's. Those three would be reimbursed for the AED's that they purchased and they will be invited to the training along with the other six.

Deputy Warden Stewart suggested we also put one at Keppoch. Council came to the consensus to add a tenth one at Keppoch.

6. New Business

a. <u>Strategic Priorities Quarterly Updates</u>

Mr. Horne provided a detailed update on the Strategic Priorities, focusing primarily on the Council's "Now" Priorities.

Councillor Dunbar joined the meeting at 5:45 pm.

b. <u>Tax Reduction Request</u>

Mr. Horne reviewed the tax reduction request to the Committee.

The assessment has been decreased for the coming year but because Mr. Crouse did not appeal the assessment during the appeal period the assessment stays as is.

The Committee came to the consensus that tax reduction will not be granted.

c. H.O.W. Club of Antigonish Request

The Committee came to a consensus that they would give \$2000 to the HOW Club and follow up with a letter asking them to apply through our Community Partnership Grants Program.

d. MCIP Funding Application for CEDI Project

Tammy Feltmate reviewed the resolution with the Committee.

Through the CEDI partnership workshops and team meetings, a number of priorities have been identified that fall within the Climate innovation and/or support sector. Currently two opportunities exist for staff position funding that could support advancing these priorities/initiatives; these funding opportunities would provide 80% - 100% funding for the position over the two year period.

A management agreement needs to be developed between Paqtnkek Mi'kmaw Nation and the County to clearly identify the objectives of the position, physical location, manager, oversight committee, etc. This agreement, along with being awarded funding, would enable the position to be created. The overarching objectives of this position include supporting the transition of our partnership for two years beyond the CEDI facilitation, and advancing our collective energy agenda.

Tammy Feltmate joined the meeting at 6:15 pm.

Moved By Councillor Dunbar Seconded By Councillor MacFarlane

The Committee recommend that Municipal Council approve the attached Council Resolution to make application to the Municipalities for Climate Innovation Program in partnership with Paqtnkek Mi'kmaw Nation.

Motion: Carried

7. Reports from Inter-Municipal Boards, Committees and Commissions

a. Antigonish Heritage Museum

Meeting will be held next week.

b. Antigonish Arena Commission

The Antigonish Arena Commission is looking to meet very soon. The important pieces of business will be to issue an RFP for audit service and recruitment of the new board.

c. Antigonish Crime Prevention

The AGM was June 17th. They are looking to do a fundraiser during the Special Olympics. This Saturday will be the Bike Rodeo.

d. <u>Eastern District Planning Commission</u>

Councillor MacFarlane and Councillor Corbett provided updates. The Town of Antigonish has officially joined the Commission as of July 3rd and they will be moving their location to the Civic Centre.

e. <u>Eastern Regional Solid Waste Management Committee</u>

Next meeting will be June 28th.

f. <u>Eastern-Strait Regional Enterprise Network</u>

g. <u>Pictou Antigonish Regional Library</u>

Councillor MacLellan gave an update that the AGM was held on June 14th. The new chair has been named; John Blackwell. The Antigonish library far exceeds all of the other libraries.

After the audit it was realized that they would not be able to give an increase in salary for staff. PARL will requesting increases in funding so they can give staff a cost of living increase.

Visits to the Antigonish Library in 2017-2018 was in excess of 183000, 76000 matierals were borrow from the library and 8000+ went out through the books by mail

h. RK MacDonald Nursing Home

Councillor MacLellan provided an update for the RK MacDonald Nursing Home. The AGM will be held on Thursday June 21. They have been able to decrease the deficit without affecting staff or residents.

8. Community Events

Members of Council provided updates on the following community events that will be occurring over the summer:

- The Lighthouse Canteen and the Dockside Cafe in Arisaig is opening on July 1st.
- Clan Chisholm will be hosting a Chicken Salmon Supper on July 3rd in Heatherton
- Daryl MacLean Beach Party St Josephs July 21
- Daryl MacLean Beach Party Mini Trail Community Centre July 20
- August 18th Pomquet Acadien Day Celebrations Chez Deslaurier
- Chez Delauriers will be opening for the summer on July 6th
- Heatherton Fun Days, second Saturday in August
- Paqtnkek PowWow, September 21-23
- Salmon Supper in Havre Boucher July 7th
- ACALA Ducky Race July 15th

Chamber of Commerce Breakfast June 28 7-9am.

9. Staff Reports

Mr. Horne updated the committee on the tax sale process. Mr. Horne gave kudos to Vera Rhynold and our tax office staff for their work on the tax sale. Through the tax sale process, there were 193-14-day notices which went out in September. From these notices \$173,911 was paid. At the auction itself \$102,000 was collected. Mr Horne gave kudos to Vera Rhynold and the entire finance team for coordinating the sale.

The arrears balance goes into our operating account. The \$102,000 goes into a reserve fund for 20 years.

The monitoring system for the solar panels is now live on screen in the foyer. Anyone can check how much power the solar panels are producing.

The auditors are currently here completing our audit.

Recreation is wrapping up their open houses.

Glenn and Allison met with the group of nine municipalities to discuss the option of a shared IT service.

Meaghan MacNeil from recreation left some biking information regarding road safety for all committee members.

Canada Day preparation is underway; progress on the pavilion is good and the facility should be ready in time for the event.

10. Additions to the Agenda

Adam Rodgers joined the meeting at 7:19 pm.

a. West River Sewer and Cameron Kinney Water

Councillor MacFarlane hosted Community Meetings to discuss the West River Sewer Extension and the Cameron Kinney Hill Water Extension. There was a great turn our for the meetings. Councillor MacFarlane feels as though the projects should only move forward if there is cost share from the provincial and federal government. West River Sewer is a \$1 Million project and without cost sharing the residents would be responsible for \$200,000. He wants the residents portion to be as low as possible. If we wait on provincial and federal funding the residents portion would go down to 12% as opposed to 20%.

On a go forward basis we intend to send out letters for these projects. Councillor MacFarlane wants a condition on the projects that we would have to secure provincial and federal funding. This may extend the projects timeline but will bring the cost down for residents. Once we get approval from residents we can keep the project viable for up to 5 years.

West River Sewer

There are nine properties identified as needing new pumps. Each pump costs between \$8000-\$10000. Councillor MacFarlane is looking for an 80/20 cost share with the municipality and the residents.

Mr. Horne stated that the approach we have taken is everything that is part of the main to the property line, is in our scope and anything from the property line into the house is the responsibility of the property owner.

There are a few different scenarios that we can run in terms of joining these pumps with the total cost of the West River Sewer project. Staff will run these numbers and report back to Councillor MacFarlane.

Moved By Councillor Dunbar Seconded By Councillor Chisholm

That the Committee of the Whole Meeting adjourn at 7:20pm.

Motion: Carried

11. <u>In Camera – Acquisition, Sale, Lease, and Security of Municipal Property; Contract</u> Negotiations

Warden McCarron reconvened the Committee of the Whole meeting after the Council meeting finished, calling the meeting to order at 9:06pm.

This subject matter falls within Section 22(2) of the Municipal Government Act as a matter that a committee may discuss in a closed session. It is recommended a motion be made to initiate an in-camera session.

Moved By Councillor MacFarlane **Seconded By** Councillor Chisholm

That the Committee of the Whole Meeting be adjourned to an In-Camera Session to discuss the Acquisition, Sale, Lease, and Security of Municipal Property and Contract Negotiations at 9:06 pm.

Motion : Carried

12. Adjournment

Moved By Councillor Corbett Seconded By Councillor MacLellan

That the Committee of the Whole meeting be adjourned at 9:38 pm.

Motion: Carried

Moved By Deputy Warden Stewart Seconded By Councillor Deveau

That the In-Camera session be adjourned at 9:38 pm.

Motion: Carried

Warden Owen McCarron

Glenn Horne, Municipal Clerk/Treasurer